
Minutes of Meeting 

Community Development Update 

February 22, 2016 - 1:30 p.m. 

 

The Kootenai County Board of Commissioners met to discuss Community Development updates.  

Chairman Green, Commissioner Stewart, and Commissioner Eberlein were present. In attendance were 

Community Development Director David Callahan, Chief Deputy Prosecutor Barry Black, Civil Deputy 

Prosecuting Attorney David Ferguson, Code Compliance Officer II Roxy Webb, Deputy Building 

Official Bob Ankersmit, Building and Grounds Manager Shawn Riley, Kootenai County Fairgrounds 

General Manager Dane Dugan, and Deputy Clerk Sandi Gilbertson. 

 

Also in attendance were Kootenai County Fire and Rescue Fire Marshall Jeryl Archer and Fire Chief 

Warren Merritt as well as a member of the public John McFaddin. 

 

A. Call to Order:  Chairman Green called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

B. Changes to the Agenda:    None 

 

C. New Business:  Discussion of complaint driven code enforcement policy 

 

Mr. Callahan said there are two aspects to discuss with the Board.  The first is with North Idaho 

Fairgrounds in that there are ongoing problems with the fairgrounds staff not obtaining building 

permits.  Mr. Ankersmit explained the most recent issue is one that was brought to the 

department’s attention last Friday when Fire Marshall Archer called to ask if Community 

Development was making any progress towards getting compliance with the change of 

use/occupancy of the lower floor section of the clubhouse adjacent to the grandstand at the 

fairgrounds.  Mr. Ankersmit said no permits had been applied for and he was unaware of any 

activity on the lower clubhouse level. 

 

Fire Marshall Archer explained that in June of each year he completes an inspection of the 

fairgrounds which includes the lower clubhouse and is below the upper clubhouse “beer gardens.”  

He said that this area had been a maintenance shop in 2011 but in the following year it had been 

dry walled and cleaned for rental usage.  He said he had explained to fairgrounds staff in 2012 or 

2013 that there needed to be a fire suppression system installed in this lower level but as long as 

progress was being made towards a solution, the facility could be used.  Marked progress would 

include engineered plans one year with water maintenance installed the next year and the fire 

suppression system installed. He continued saying that last year he received information from 

fairgrounds staff that that there were a couple of bids received for the work but upon his 

inspection no work or progress has been done. Fire Marshall Archer contacted Mr. Ankersmit to 

discuss what permits had been issued for this lower level and then finding no permits or progress, 

he said he would put a stop on the usage of this lower clubhouse immediately. 

 

Mr. Dugan explained he didn’t start employment until October of 2012 and that transition had 

already taken place.  He said he didn’t have any reason to ask whether or not a permit had been 

filed because it already was in use.  

 

Mr. Ankersmit checked assessor’s records and presented two assessor’s photos – one from 

October 2012 and one present time.  The photos show that doors and other changes have been 

added.  Mr. Ankersmit said there has been a change of use and occupancy classification which 

means issues like fire suppression and handicap accessibility need to be addressed.  Mr. Callahan 

expressed the need to immediately address Americans with Disability Act requirements. 

 

 



 
Community Development Update 

February 22, 2016 

2 
 

 

Mr. Ankersmit explained that he has requested that Mr. Dugan apply for a permit for the work 

that has been done as well as applying for permits for the work that is going to be done.  In 

addition, a licensed architect would have to stamp the plans.  There was a general discussion of 

various ideas of what needs to be done to the entire facility from constructing a complete new 

building to different types of repairs. 

 

Fire Marshall Archer said he will put a stop the use immediately of the lower level.  It will need 

to revert back and only be used for storage until there is a plan on how to move forward and how 

to fund the project.  He emphasized that he needs a hard plan to follow and that the action to seize 

and desist use of that facility today would stand until a hard plan is established. 

 

The Board’s direction was for Commissioner Stewart, Fire Marshall Archer, Mr. Dugan, Mr. 

Riley and Mr. Anskermit do a site visit tomorrow morning at 7 a.m.  After that come together 

with all parties involved and discuss how to move forward.  Chairman Green gave direction that 

Mr. Dugan obtain the necessary building permits and that the second floor can be used once 

proper permits are obtained. 

 

The second aspect Mr. Callahan explained is that currently the policy for code enforcement is to 

only handle incidents that are complaint driven.  Code Compliance Officer Roxy Webb added 

that the process currently is for the person who files the complaint to sign the complaint.  She said 

that at times this causes friction between neighbors. She said there are complaints that do come in 

but if the person will not sign the complaint, the complaint is not investigated. Mr. Callahan said 

his concern is if a member of the Community Development staff were to see a code enforcement 

issue, he would like to be able to investigate those issues.  These would involve life safety type 

issues.  The Commissioners agreed that if there are any code violations that are not complaint 

driven by the public, Mr. Callahan could bring those to the Community Development update 

meetings for discussion by the Board. 

 

D. Public Comment:   

 

John McFaddin spoke about the proposed jet boat race for the Coeur d’Alene River scheduled for 

May and his concern with the process.  Mr. McFaddin explained that the Kootenai County Sheriff’s 

Office is the permitting authority and his concern is that other agencies are not being involved at all to 

address other issues.  Mr. McFaddin would like the County Commissioners to become involved and 

protect the citizens from the impacts of this race.  Chairman Green explained that the County 

Commissioners have no jurisdiction on this event.  Mr. McFaddin asked why the County’s Special 

Events ordinance is not being enforced.  Mr. Callahan explained that the Special Events ordinance is 

when part of the event is actually being held on County soil; this event is only on the waterways. 

 

There being no further discussion of agenda items or public comment, Chairman Green adjourned the 

meeting at 2:50 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

JIM BRANNON, CLERK  

   

By: ____________________      _____________________   

       Deputy Clerk         Dan Green, Chairman 


